

Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge

CITY COUNCIL MEETING PACKET

FOR

Tuesday, November 21, 2017

Sherwood City Hall 22560 SW Pine Street Sherwood, Oregon

5:30 pm Work Session

7:00 pm City Council Meeting



Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge

5:30 pm WORK SESSION

- 1. Sidewalk Repair Program (Craig Sheldon)
- Solid Waste Rate Report (Joe Gall)
- 3. Possible Amendments to Fee Schedule (Katie Henry)

REGULAR SESSION

- 1. CALL TO ORDER
- 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- 3. ROLL CALL
- APPROVAL OF AGENDA
- 5. CONSENT AGENDA
 - A. Approval of November 7, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes
- 6. CITIZEN COMMENTS
- 7. PUBLIC HEARINGS
 - A. Ordinance 2017-006 Amending the Solid Waste Code (Joe Gall, City Manager) (First Reading)
 - B. Ordinance 2017-007 Amending Sherwood Municipal Code (SMC) Chapter 15.04 relating to the adoption of the Oregon Plumbing Specialty Code, Oregon Electrical Specialty Code and Residential Specialty Code, and repealing reference to the Oregon Solar Installation Specialty Code (Scott McKie, Building Official) (First Reading)
- 8. CITY MANAGER REPORT
- 9. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS
- 10. ADJOURN

How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule:

City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Thursday prior to a Council meeting. Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the Sherwood YMCA, the Senior Center, and the Sherwood Post Office. Council meeting materials are available at the Sherwood Public Library. To Schedule a Presentation before Council: If you would like to schedule a presentation before the City Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and the date you wish to appear to the City Recorder, 503-625-4246 or murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov

AGENDA

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL November 21, 2017

5:30 pm Work Session

7:00 pm City Council Meeting

Sherwood City Hall 22560 SW Pine Street Sherwood, OR 97140



SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or November 7, 2017

WORK SESSION

- 1. CALL TO ORDER: Council President Sean Garland called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.
- 2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Councilors Kim Young, Jennifer Kuiper and Russell Griffin.
- 3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joseph Gall, Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier, Police Chief Jeff Groth, City Attorney Josh Soper, Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Planning Manager Erika Palmer, Senior Planner Carrie Brennecke, Finance Director Katie Henry, Public Works Operation Manager Rich Sattler, Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch, and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy.

4. TOPICS:

A. 2018 Urban Growth Expansion Process and Update

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk provided a presentation on the potential Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) expansion (see record, Exhibit A). She referred to the map on page 2 and discussed the urban and rural reserves and said for the 50 year planning period the urban reserves are where the UGB could be expanded into and the rural reserves are protected from urban development for 50 years. She stated Metro has the responsibility to manage the UGB and generally evaluate every six years and she noted the last Urban Growth Report (UGR) was adopted in 2015. She said the UGR determined that no UGB expansion was needed but agreed to re-evaluate in less than six years. She said Metro is now reevaluating the UGR and UGB expansion in an expedited process and by December 2017 they want letters of interest from jurisdictions that are interested in potentially expanding their UGB and formal requests by May 2018. She said Metro is planning on having decisions by December 2018. She said the Council received comments from the Sherwood West UGB Expansion meeting (see record, Exhibit B) and noted the attendees were asked about preferred areas and timing. She referred to page 5, the Metro Title 11 Concept Plan requirements, and said they have to be in place before Metro will consider bringing the area into the UGB. She stated Sherwood West addressed most of the requirements and there are a few things that need to be done if the City decides to ask for expansion.

She commented on page 6, the Housing Growth Forecast for 2018-2038, and stated Sherwood will need 1653 new dwelling units and the vacant land supply in the City and Brookman Road will provide approximately 1155 dwelling. She concluded Sherwood has a deficit of 450 dwelling units with the largest deficits in MDR, MDRH, and HDR and stated Sherwood will need to annex the Brookman area. She said Metro's growth forecast assumes a .8% per year where Sherwood has historically grown at 3.4% per year.

She noted if Sherwood grows 2% to 4% per year we have about 4 to 10 years of growth in the City plus Brookman Road.

She referred to page 7, Changes in the Household Forecast from 2015-2035 to 2018-2035, and said in the 2015 Housing Needs Analysis (HNA) Sherwood had a surplus of 125 homes and in the 2018-2035 version Sherwood has a deficit of 450 homes of which are medium to high density residential. She concluded the City needs to plan for more missing middle housing. She said the City is considering asking to expand the UGB because if trends continue, several thousand people will move to the Sherwood area which means housing prices will go up and there will be more pressure for aggressive infill. She stated there will be an economic impact with less housing available for the jobs. She noted the new high school will be in Sherwood West and there is opportunity to look at the area holistically and consider expanding.

She commented on Sherwood West and said it is a logical area to ask for an UGB expansion with the new high school and the Sherwood West Concept Plan. She stated Sherwood West urban reserve area is 1291 acres and consists of 124 properties. She noted the Sherwood West Preliminary Concept Plan was accepted in February 2016 as a planning tool to help guide future discussions and decisions of how Sherwood grows. She commented on the attributes of the plan which include 10 minute neighborhoods, resource protection, access to nature and trails, schools, and neighborhood serving retail. She said the plan includes two preferred options and the only difference is in options 1 Elwert has curves and in option 2 Elwert is straight. She commented on the conceptual phasing of the area.

She said the City had an open house on October 25, 2017 to seek input on whether the community is interested in asking for UGB expansion and if so how much. She stated the meeting was broadly noticed and 85 to 100 people attended. She said they received 67 comments (see record, Exhibit B). She asked Senior Planner Carrie Brennecke to explain the feedback. Senior Planner Carrie Brennecke referred to the map on page 15 and said the yellow pins recommend the 2018 expansion and the red pins recommend the 2021 expansion. She said basically most agreed that the growth should be focused around the new high school and in areas most readily served by infrastructure. She stated there are many property owners in Phase A, B, and C that are requesting to be brought into the UGB. She noted there is heavy concern about the safety and traffic on Elwert and Edy and the Elwert/Edy intersection. She stated there is concern about the impact of growth on Sherwood's small town feel, schools, and overall traffic.

Julia said staff is recommending that a letter of interest be sent to Metro indicating that we ask for 560 gross acres of land within the Sherwood West area be brought into the UGB in 2018. She discussed the reasons and referred to the new school and said it is hard to finance a small property coming into the UGB. She said the expansion will help meet the housing deficit, is near the new school, is easily served by existing infrastructure, and is consistent with property owner's requests. She commented on the intersection of Elwert/Edy and said the expansion will force the issue with the County to redesign and improve the intersection. She said Sherwood is made up of a network of small walkable communities and this proposed expansion area has a ¼ mile radius and there is enough land to support 3 neighborhoods and complete a 4th neighborhood.

Julia discussed page 18, Potential Sherwood West Planning and Development Process 2015-2065, and referred to the overall timeline. She said Metro has a process to expand the UGB then concept planning begins which requires funding and could take 1 ½ years. She said once the plan is adopted the annexation process begins. She stated the next step is land use applications which take 8 to 12 months. She noted the

next step is public improvement plan approval which takes 6 to 12 months. She estimated a minimum of 5 years before any construction will take place.

Julia referred to the next steps and said staff will likely have a letter of interest to Metro by December 29, 2017. She said the City needs to adopt a Housing Needs Analysis technical component in February or March 2018 which is required as part of the Comprehensive Plan update. She stated staff will draft a formal proposal to Metro by April 2018, come back to Council for a formal endorsement of the proposal in April or May 2018, and submit a proposal to Metro in May 2018. She asked for Council input. She said the City has heard concerns about wanting to bring in more in order to double load the road. She said that would be an additional 75 acres. Discussion followed about the Elwert/Edy intersection.

Julia asked Council if they agree with asking for 560 gross acres and said asking for a larger area helps you plan. Carrie said if the Council agrees with the staff recommendation, staff will continue with public outreach. Julia asked the Council for general feedback on opposition or concern about the recommendation. She said she is not hearing opposition and asked if Council wants the letter of interest to include the additional 75 acres. Council agreed that if the additional 75 acres helps improve the Elwert/Edy intersection it is important.

B. WWSP Water Treatment Plant Siting

City Manager Joseph Gall asked Willamette Water Supply Project (WWSP) Engineering and Construction Manager Mike Britch and Program Delivery and Real Estate Manager Todd Perimon to come forward and present their PowerPoint (see record, Exhibit C). Mr. Britch provided a brief overview of the WWSP in and said it is a \$1.2 billion infrastructure program and will deliver the next water supply to the Washington County region. He said the WWSP will include an expansion of the modified water intake, a new water treatment plant, 30 miles of large diameter water transmission lines and water storage tanks. He stated the two partners are Tualatin Valley Water District (TVWD) and Hillsboro and scheduled completion is July 2026. He said the WWSP has partner with Washington County on the road projects and the first project is SW 124th Avenue and is resulting in significant savings for both agencies. He stated the benefits of partnering include coordinated construction schedules which limit the overall disruption, joint construction projects which save money, and synergy which accelerate schedules. He discussed the Tualatin-Sherwood Road Project coordinated project boundaries which minimize disruption and overall public impact.

Mr. Perimon commented on the water treatment plant and said TVWD and Hillsboro have recently purchased a site for the plant. He said there was an extensive evaluation process which included City staff. He discussed the advantages of the site and said it is located on Tualatin-Sherwood Road and 124th Avenue and has sufficient area with stable geology and is located in an appropriate commercial/industrial zone. He stated the site allows for the protection of a significant kolk pond. He discussed the constraints of the site which include existing encumbrances, significant environmental resources, existing topography and constructability and long-term operations and maintenance. He stated the big opportunity is the high value commercial/industrial development. He said as part of the purchase they have entered into a contract with a national developer whereby the property will be partitioned and the developer will purchase the property from them to implement the commercial/industrial development. He referred to the next steps and said they are under contract for purchasing the property and then they will request annexation and the land use application should be submitted by late 2019. He said they are planning on starting construction in 2022.

5. ADJOURN:

The Council President adjourned the work session at 6:57 pm.

REGULAR SESSION

- 1. CALL TO ORDER: Council President Garland called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm.
- 2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Councilors Kim Young, Jennifer Kuiper and Russell Griffin.
- 3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joseph Gall, Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier, Police Chief Jeff Groth, City Attorney Josh Soper, Finance Director Katie Henry, Center for the Arts Manager Maggie Chapin, Public Works Operation Manager Rich Sattler, Planning Manager Erika Palmer, City Engineer Bob Galati, Engineering Technician Thomas Benson, Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy.

The Council President addressed approval of the agenda and asked for a motion.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR JENNIFER KUIPER TO APPROVE THE AGENDA, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KIM YOUNG. MOTION PASSED 4:0, ALL PRESENT MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.

The Council President addressed the next agenda item and asked for a motion.

5. CONSENT AGENDA:

- A. Approval of October 17, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes
- B. Approval of October 31, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes
- C. Resolution 2017-076 Completing the annual performance evaluation of the City Attorney for the City of Sherwood
- D. Resolution 2017-077 Amending the employment agreement with the City Attorney providing an increase in term and compensation "amendment #2"
- E. Resolution 2017-078 Reappointing Skye Boughey to the Cultural Arts Commission
- F. Resolution 2017-079 Approving the City Recorder's canvassing of the Washington County Election returns of the October 17, 2017 special recall election and directing the City Recorder to enter the results into the record
- G. Resolution 2017-080 Completing the annual performance evaluation of the City Manager for the City of Sherwood (Josh Soper, City Attorney)
- H. Resolution 2017-081 Amending the Contract of the City Manager for the City of Sherwood
- I. Resolution 2017-082 Authorizing the City Manager to sign the Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Sherwood (the "City") and the Sherwood School District (the "District") for planning and development review services related to the construction of a new high school

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR RUSSELL GRIFFIN TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KIM YOUNG. MOTION PASSED 4:0, ALL PRESENT MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.

The Council President addressed the next agenda item.

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS:

Tim Rossner, Sherwood resident approached the Council and referred to questions about the legality of the October 31, 2017 City Council meeting. He said he researched the subject and said there are three things you need to hold a Council meeting; an agenda with timely notice, the authority to call the meeting, and once in the meeting the authority to conduct business. He commented on having a timely agenda and stated ORS 192-640 requires that a governing body have an agenda and provides noticing to the public. He said Chapter 3 Section 7 of the City Charter states that a majority of the Council may cause an item to be added to the agenda of a future meeting. He referred to the authority to call the meeting and said Section C Paragraph 3 of the City Council Rules states that a special meeting may be called by the Mayor, Council President in the absence of the Mayor, or a majority of the Council. He referred to having a quorum to conduct business and said the Charter states a quorum in the majority of the seated members of Council. He said in his view the steps that the City took to have the October 31, 2017 meeting were in line with the Charter.

7. PRESENTATIONS:

A. Recognition of Eagle Scout Award Recipients

Council President Garland recognized Brenden Scheirman for receiving his Eagle Scout Award. Brenden was not present and Council President Garland indicated the certificate would be mailed.

The Council President addressed the next agenda item.

8. NEW BUSINESS:

A. Resolution 2017-083 Declaring two Sherwood City Council seats vacant

City Manager Joseph Gall said this resolution starts the process to declare former Councilors Harris and Robinson seats vacant as they both resigned shortly after the recall election last month. He said once the seats are declared vacant the City will start the process of filling the vacancies. He noted because there is more than 13 months remaining in the terms the City needs to fill the vacancies by appointment and have the positions on the March election ballot. He said if this resolution is approved the application deadline to apply to serve will be November 27 at 5 pm. He said depending on the number of applications, Council will decided the interview schedule.

With no questions from Council, Council President Garland asked for a motion.

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR KIM YOUNG TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2017-083 DECLARING TWO SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL SEATS VACANT, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR JENNIFER KUIPER. MOTION PASSED 4:0, ALL PRESENT MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.

Council President Garland addressed the next item on the agenda.

B. Resolution 2017-084 Appointment to Mayor Position

Mr. Gall said this resolution will appoint someone to serve in the Mayor seat until the March 2018 election. He said the City received applications from Lee Weislogel and Council President Sean Garland and stated Council President Sean Garland withdrew his application so there is only one candidate to consider. He noted that Mr. Weislogel has served on the City Council in the past.

City Attorney Josh Soper said according to the Code a council member must nominate a candidate, the nomination requires a second, and a vote must be taken to approve the appointment. He said the next step is to approve Resolution 2017-084.

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR JENNIFER KUIPER TO NOMINATE LEE WEISLOGEL, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KIM YOUNG. MOTION PASSED 4:0, ALL PRESENT MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR JENNIFER KUIPER TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2017-084, SECONDED BY COUNCIL RUSSELL GRIFFIN. MOTION PASSED 4:0, ALL PRESENT MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.

C. Swearing In of Mayor

Lee Weislogel came forward and Judge Jack Morris administered the Oath of Office. Mayor Weislogel took a seat at the dais and said he is looking forward to working with the Council and building on the good of the past.

Mayor Weislogel addressed the next item on the agenda.

9. CITY MANAGER REPORT:

City Manager Joseph Gall asked Community Development Director Julia Hajduk to introduce the new employees in her department.

City Engineer Bob Galati came forward and introduced Engineering Technician I Thomas Benson. He said Thomas will be in charge of the items of erosion sediment control inspection for single family residential, right of way permits, GIS data entry and the front desk for Engineering. Mr. Benson provided a brief background of his career and the Council welcomed him to the staff.

Julia asked Planning Manager Erika Palmer to come forward. She said Erika has over 15 years of planning experience and has done 5 comprehensive plans. Council welcomed her to the staff.

Mayor Weislogel addressed the next item on the agenda.

10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Councilor Griffin said he has enjoyed his three weeks on the Council and said he will support whoever wins the election for the vacant Council seat.

Councilor Young said she has attended School Board meetings, Parks Board meetings and Library Advisory Board meetings over the last few weeks. She said Friday she attended the Oregon Peace Officer's Award Banquet and said the Sherwood Police Officers and others were recognized for the Christmas night incident.

Council President Garland said he attended a Planning Commission meeting. He encouraged residents to get their ballots turned in by 8 pm.

Councilor Kuiper said there is a School Board meeting tomorrow at the Ridges at 5:45 pm. She stated there will be a Veteran's Day event on Saturday at the Center for the Arts at 11 am.

Mayor Weislogel said the Council has a number of liaison responsibilities and discussed the importance of these duties. He commented on the success of the Halloween event in Old Town Sherwood and thanked Sherwood Main Street, Sherwood Police Department, Public Works Department, Center for the Arts staff, and Library staff and business organizations for their contributions.

Mayor Weislogel addressed the next item on the agenda.

11. ADJOURN TO URA EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Mayor Weislogel adjourned the meeting at 7:33 pm.		
Attest:		
7 MOSI.		
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder	Lee Weislogel, Mayor	

City Council Meeting Date: November 21, 2017

Agenda Item: Public Hearing

TO: Sherwood City Council

FROM: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager

Through: Josh Soper, City Attorney

SUBJECT: Ordinance 2017-006, amending the Solid Waste Code (First Reading)

Issue:

Shall the City Council amend the Solid Waste Code?

Background:

During the last rate review in late 2016, Pride Disposal, our franchised solid waste hauler, made the request to the City of Sherwood to consider adoption of an annual cost of living index similar to code language that the City of Tigard adopted within their solid waste code. The major advantage to adopting such CPI language would smooth out potential rate increases and lessen the possibility of significant rate increases for customers. In addition to considering such an index, city staff and Pride Disposal both believed that our current code language could also benefit from various minor housekeeping changes to reflect current practices.

The proposed ordinance for Council consideration addresses both the CPI request and minor housekeeping changes in our code.

Financial Impacts:

There are no additional financial impacts as a result of approval of this resolution.

Recommendation:

Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council hold the first public hearing to determine whether to adopt Ordinance 2017-006 amending the Solid Waste Code. The second public hearing on this matter is scheduled for December 5, 2017.

		/	Style Definition		=
			Formatted		=
[Тур	e here]	///	Formatted	<u> </u>	Ξ
		[[//	Formatted	[
•	Chapter 8.20 - SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT	// ,	Formatted	(
	proper 6.20 30210 W/OTE IN/III/IOEINERT		Formatted		
Sect	ions:	<u> </u>	Formatted	[
			Formatted	<u></u>	=
•	8.20.010 - Short title.	<i>f</i>	Formatted	<u></u>	=
	T		Formatted	(<u>:</u>
	The ordinance codified in this chapter shall be known as the city of Sherwood solid waste management nance and may be so cited and shall be hereinafter referred to as this chapter.	7	Formatted		<u>-</u>
			Formatted		_
(Orc	1. 89-899 § 1)	/ /	Formatted		-
			Formatted		=
•	8.20.020 - Purpose, policy and scope.		Formatted		
A.		\mathcal{J}	Formatted		
	It is declared to be in the public interest for the city to establish a policy relative to solid waste √	[[/ ,	Formatted	[
	management and to:		Formatted	[
	1	///	Formatted		=
	Provide sufficient waste volume to sustain solid waste management facilities necessary to	///		<u></u>	=
	achieve resource recovery goals established by the city, county, State Department of Environmental Quality and metropolitan service district; metro regional government;	///	Formatted		
		///	Formatted	[=
	Provide the basis for agreements with other governmental units and persons for regional flow	////	Formatted		<u>:</u>
	control to such facilities;	///	Formatted		_
	3.	///	Formatted		<u>-</u>
	Ensure safe accumulation, storage, collection, transportation, disposal or resource recovery of		Formatted		
	solid waste, and protect the public health, safety and welfare;	///	Formatted		_
	4.	///	Formatted	(=
	Ensure maintenance of a financially stable, reliable solid waste collection and disposal service;	Z_{j}	Formatted		
	5.	/_	Formatted	[
	Ensure rates that are just, fair, reasonable and adequate to provide necessary service to the	_	Formatted	(
	public;	/	Formatted		
	6 .	_	Formatted		
	Prohibit rate preference and other discriminatory practices which benefit one user at the expense of other users of the service or the general public;			[
	_		Formatted		
	Conserve energy and material resources and meet statewide goals of recycling usable wastes;		Formatted		-
			Formatted		-
	 8. Eliminate overlapping service to reduce truck traffic, street wear, air pollution and noise; 	_	Formatted		=
	-	1	Formatted		_ <u>:</u>
	9.		Formatted		-
	Provide standards for solid waste service and public responsibilities; and	1	Formatted		_
	10.	///	Formatted		
	Provide resource recovery by and through the franchisee.		Formatted		Ξ
		$\ \ _I$	Formatted	(÷
[Тур	e here]	1//	Formatted		
	•	///	Formatted		Ė
		//			=
		\	Formatted	l	

Formatted

		Formatted	
.1.		Formatted	
Provide solid waste service, offer to provide service or advertise for the performance of service		Formatted	
without having obtained a franchise from the city;	-//	Formatted	
2.			[
Accumulate, store, collect, transport, transfer, dispose of or resource recover solid waste except		Formatted	
as in compliance with this chapter, other city ordinances, and Chapter 459 Oregon Revised Statutes dealing with solid waste management, and regulations and amendments promulgated		Formatted	
under any of the foregoing.		Formatted	
		Formatted	
Nothing in this chapter shall:		Formatted	
1.		Formatted	
Prohibit any person from transporting directly to an authorized disposal or recycling or resource-		Formatted	(
recovery facility, or utilizing or resource recover solid waste produced by himself or herself so	1/	Formatted	
long as he or she complies with this chapter, other city ordinances, and Chapter 459 Oregon Revised Statutes dealing with solid waste management, and regulations promulgated under any			
of the foregoing. Provided however, that except as provided herein, a lessor or property owner	\rightarrow	Formatted	
shall not provide service to a tenant, lessee or occupant except through the franchisee;		Formatted	
2.		Formatted	
Prohibit any person from contracting with any other governmental agency to provide solid waste-	-	Formatted	
service;	\geq	Formatted	
3.		Formatted	
Prohibit any person from transporting, disposing of or resource recovering, sewage sludge, septic	-	Formatted	(
tank pumpings and cesspool pumpings;		Formatted	(
4.			
Prohibit any person licensed as a motor vehicle wrecker under ORS 481.345 et seq. from-		Formatted	
collecting, transporting, disposing of or utilizing motor vehicles or motor vehicle parts;	-	Formatted	
5.		Formatted	
Prohibit the city council by amendment to this chapter from withdrawing or modifying certain solid- waste services on the basis of finding that such service is not necessary for the implementation		Formatted	
of the purposes of this chapter or a city, county or metropolitan service districtmetro regional		Formatted	
government solid waste management plan;		Formatted	[
6.		Formatted	(
Prohibit any person transporting solid waste through the city that is not collected within the city;	_	Formatted	
7.		Formatted	
Prohibit a contractor employed to demolish, construction, or remodel a building or structure,			[
including but not limited to land clearing operations and construction wastes, from hauling waste		Formatted	
created in connection with such employment;		Formatted	
<u>8</u> .	_ `	Formatted	
Prohibit the occasional collection, transportation and reuse of repairable or cleanable discards or		Formatted	
source separated solid waste for recycling or resource recovery by private charitable or nonprofit organizations for the purpose of raising funds for charitable, civic, or benevolent activity provided		Formatted	
that the activity is conducted in accordance with the terms and under the conditions contained in		Formatted	(
this chapter;	/	Formatted	<u> </u>
			(
Type here]			

Formatted

, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	on at a fixed location of a facility where the generator, producer, source or
	of solid waste brings that waste for transfer, disposal or resource recovery;
10.	
Prohibit the collection 459;	on, transportation or redemption of beverage containers under ORS Chapter
11.	
	om transporting or disposing of waste that he or she produces as an incidental- rvices; gardening or landscaping services; rendering; or other similar and
,12 .	
	see to store, collect, transport, dispose of or resource recover any hazardous or pursuant to ORS Chapter 466.
Ord. 89-899 § 2)	
8.20.030 - Definitions	s. <u>.</u>
	ns service whereby the franchisee will collect properly stored solid waste perty, provided said waste is clearly visible and accessible to the franchisee.
aritable, benevolent, huma	organization" means any person or persons organized and existing for ne, patriotic, religious, philanthropic, recreational, social, educational, civic, rpose, and who is exempt from federal and state income taxes as a nonprofit
oceeds from resource reco	any type of consideration paid for service including, but not limited to, the overy or recycling, rent, lease payments, and any other direct or indirect oney, goods, services or benefits by owners, tenants, leaseeslessees, or the exchange of services between persons.
"Council" means the city	council of the city of Sherwood.
	ins service whereby the franchisee will collect properly stored solid waste side a public street or some other location designated by the franchisee.
"Franchise" means the ri-	ght to provide service granted to a person pursuant to this chapter.
"Nonrecycling customer"	means a regular customer of the franchisee that elects not to enroll in the provide recyclable materials at least once monthly, as determined by the
"Person" means any indiv private legal entity.	vidual, partnership, corporation, trust, firm, estate, joint venture or other public
"Putrescible material" me fensive odors or products.	eans organic materials that can decompose and may give rise to foul-smelling,
	ans a regular customer of the franchisee who enrolls in the recycling program erials curbside at least once monthly, as determined by the franchisee's
	ans the process of obtaining useful material or energy resources from solid
aste and includes:	

Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	
Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
Formatted	
Formatted	
Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	
Formatted	
Formatted	
Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	
Formatted	
Formatted	
Formatted	
Formatted	
Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	
Formatted	
Formatted	
Formatted	
Formatted	()
Formatted	Ä
Formatted	
Formatted	<u> </u>
Formatted	
Formatted	<u> </u>
Formatted	٣
Formatted	
Formatted	٣
Formatted	٣
romattea	[J

[Type here]
"Energy recovery," which means recovery in which all or a part of the solid waste materials are processed to utilize the heat content, or other forms of energy, of or from the material.
2.
"Material recovery," which means any process of obtaining from solid waste, by presegregation or otherwise, materials which still have useful physical or chemical properties after serving a specific purpose and can, therefore, be reused or recycled for the same or other purpose.
3.
"Recycling," which means any process by which solid waste materials are transformed into new products in such manner that the original products may lose their identity. The process includes collection, transportation, storage and transfer of solid waste and placing the solid waste in the stream of commerce for resource recovery.
A
"Reuse," which means the return of a commodity into the economic stream for use in the same kind of application as before without change in its identity.
"Roll cart" means a wheeled, rigid plastic can provided by the franchisee to their customers.
"Service" means the collection, transportation, storage, transfer, disposal of or resource recovery of solid waste, using the public streets of the city to provide service, and including solid waste management.
"Solid waste" means:
1.
All putrescible and non-putrescible wastes, including, but not limited to garbage, rubbish, refuse, ashes, waste paper, cardboard, yard debris, compost, tires, equipment and furniture; commercial, industrial, demolition and construction wastes; discarded or abandoned vehicles or parts thereof; discarded home or industrial appliances; manure, vegetable and animal solid and semi-solid wastes, dead animals, infectious waste as defined in ORS 459.386 organic food waste, electronics and associated components, mattresses, junk and other wastes. Solid waste shall not include:
a.
Sewer sludge and septic tank and cesspool pumping, chemical toilet waste or other sludge;
<u>þ.</u>
Reusable beverage containers as defined in ORS 459A.700 and 459A.725;
Material used for fertilizer or for other productive agricultural operations in growing or harvesting crops and the raising of fowl or animals.
2The fact that materials that would otherwise come within the definition of solid waste may from ✓
time to time have value and thus be utilized does not remove them from the definition.
"Solid waste management" means the prevention or reduction of solid waste; management of the storage, transfer, collection, transportation, treatment, utilization, processing and final disposal of solid waste; or resource recovery from solid waste; and facilities used for those activities.
"Source separation" means the separation or setting aside of waste, by the source generator or producer of the waste, for recycling or reuse. Total source separation means the complete separation by the source generator or producer of the waste by type or kind of waste from all other types or kinds of waste. Total source separation requires each type or kind of recyclable material such as newsprint, computer paper, cardboard, glass, ferrous cans and aluminum cans to be distinctly separated into a separate package, container or stack in preparation for collection. For example,

Formatted	
Formatted	
Formatted	[]
Formatted	
Formatted	
Formatted	[]
Formatted	
Formatted	()

Ordinance 2017-006, Exh A to Staff Report November 21, 2017 Page 5 of 16

[Type here]

[Type here] newspaper, cardboard, glass, ferrous cans and waste wood are each placed in a separate container and no two or more recyclables are mixed in the same container. "Standard can" means a thirty-two (32) gallon metal or rigid plastic garbage can. "Tote barrel" means a wheeled, sixty (60) gallon, rigid plastic garbage can provided by the franchisee to their customers. "Twenty (20) gallon can" means a twenty (20) gallon metal or rigid plastic garbage can. ,"Waste" means material that is no longer wanted or usable by the source, the source generator orproducer of the material, and the material is to be disposed of or resource recovered by another person, and includes both source separated material and nonsource separated materials. (Ord. 2013-001, § 1, 2-5-2013; Ord. 98-1049 § 4; Ord. 90-915 § 2; Ord. 89-899 § 3) 8.20.040 - Franchises. Subject to the provisions of this chapter, other city ordinances, and the City Charter, the council may by resolution grant exclusive or nonexclusive franchises, with or without competitive bidding, to provide service over and upon the streets of a franchise area within the city. Nonperformance of the terms and conditions of the franchise agreement may result in financial and operating penalties to the franchisee, and may result in the loss or limitation of the franchisee's right to provide services. where any area is annexed to the city of Sherwood and the area had been franchised by Washington √ County for solid waste collection service prior to annexation, the county franchise and franchise holder shall be recognized for that particular area subject to the provisions of ORS 459.085(3). If the area was franchised by Washington County to a city franchisee, that area shall be added by resolution to a city franchise area. (Ord. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part): Ord. 89-899 § 4) 8.20.045 - Franchise—Application, application approval, and statement of ownership. Applicants for a solid waste management franchise under this chapter must file with the city manager an application in a format approved by the city manager which shall at least provide the following information: Full name; Permanent home and business address; Trade and firm name; If a joint venture, a partnership or limited partnership, the names of all partners and of their percentage of participation and their permanent addresses; if a corporation, the names and permanent addresses of all the officers;

1	Formatted	(
	Formatted	
/	Formatted	<u></u>
/	Formatted	(
	Formatted	<u></u>
	Formatted	(
	Formatted	<u></u>
1	Formatted	<u></u>
/	Formatted	(
1	Formatted	<u></u>
1	Formatted	[
1	Formatted	<u></u>
1	Formatted	<u></u>
1	Formatted	[
1	Formatted	<u></u>
1	Formatted	(
1	Formatted	<u></u>
1	Formatted	<u></u>
1	Formatted	(
1	Formatted	<u></u>
1	Formatted	
/	Formatted	<u></u>
	Formatted	<u></u>
	Formatted	(
/	Formatted	<u></u>
A	Formatted	
A	Formatted	(
A	Formatted	<u></u>
1	Formatted	(
1	Formatted	<u></u>
1	Formatted	[
1	Formatted	[
1	Formatted	(
1	Formatted	(

Formatted

	Formatted	
	Formatted	
Type here]	Formatted	
	Formatted	
5.	Formatted	
Evidence showing that:		
-	Formatted	
An applicant for a solid waste collection and transportation franchise has arranged for	Formatted	
disposal of all solid waste collected or transported to an authorized disposal site where it	Formatted	
may legally be accepted and disposed of, and the location of that disposal site; or	Formatted	
þ.	Formatted	
An applicant for a curbside recycling collection and transportation franchise has arranged for the sanitary storage and recycling of the collected materials and proper disposal of any	Formatted	
nonrecyclable residue;	Formatted	
. 6.	Formatted	
Facts showing that the applicant is qualified to render efficient solid waste or curbside recyclables	Formatted	
collection and transportation service;	Formatted	
7.	Formatted	
Facts showing that the applicant has adequate experience in the collection and transportation of ✓ solid waste or curbside recyclables;	Formatted	
· -	Formatted	
8. A description of all vehicles and equipment used or intended to be used by the franchisee or its.	Formatted	
subcontractors, including vehicle type, license number, age and condition;	Formatted	
9 .	Formatted	
A statement certifying that the vehicles and equipment identified are in compliance with the	Formatted	
requirements of this chapter, the state minimum standards for solid waste handling and disposal, applicable provisions of the vehicle code, and other legal requirements;	Formatted	
,10.	Formatted	
Facts demonstrating that the applicant owns or has access to suitable facilities for the storage,	Formatted	
maintenance and cleaning of vehicles and equipment;	Formatted	
, 11.	Formatted	
Evidence showing that the issuance of a franchise is in the public interest; and	Formatted	
. 12.	Formatted	
Such other facts or information as the city manager may require.	Formatted	
	Formatted	
Upon receipt of a completed application for a franchise, the city manager will determine if the applicant meets all the requirements of this chapter and all applicable state and federal laws and regulations.	Formatted	
Theets all the requirements of this chapter and all applicable state and rederal laws and regulations.	Formatted	
Decision. A decision to grant or not to grant the franchise will be made by the city council within.		
one hundred twenty (120) days from the receipt of a complete application.	Formatted Formatted	
2.		
Acceptance. By signing the designated franchise acceptance, the applicant accepts all of the	Formatted	
terms and conditions specified in the franchise.	Formatted	
3.	Formatted	
Appeal. If the city council determines that a franchise will not be granted or if the decision to grant or not grant the franchise is not made within one hundred twenty (120) days, the applicant has	Formatted	
the right to a hearing before the city council. A request for a hearing must be made by the applicant	Formatted	
in writing to the city recorder within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of notice of denial or	Formatted	
Type here]	Formatted	
•	Formatted	

within fifteen (15) calendar days after the one hundred twenty- (120) day has passed. Upon receipt of the written request for hearing, the city recorder will set the matter for hearing on a date not more than sixty (60) days after the receipt of the written request. The city recorder will give written notice of the time, date and place of hearing to the applicant and the public. At the hearing, the applicant has the burden of proof to show facts demonstrating that the applicant meets the requirements of this chapter and applicable state and federal laws and regulations, and that the granting of the franchise is required by the public safety, health, welfare, convenience or necessity. The city council will make its decision within fifteen (15) days after the close of the hearing on appeal. The decision of the city council is final.

C.

Every franchisee must file a statement of ownership with the city manager by July 1st of each year and verify it as true and correct under the penalty of perjury. This statement must be made in a form acceptable to the city manager.

(Ord. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part))

8.20.050 - Franchise term.

Δ

The rights, privileges and initial franchise granted herein shall continue and be in full force for a period of ten years up to and including November 1, 1999, subject to terms, conditions and payment of franchise fees to the city as set forth in this chapter.

В.

On November 1st of each year the franchise granted to franchisee shall be renewed for a ten year period starting from that annual renewal date without any action from the council unless the council acts to terminate the franchise at the end of the ten year period then in effect by giving written notice to franchisee prior to the annual renewal date.

(Ord. 89-899 § 5)

• 8.20.060 - Franchise fees.

Α.

As compensation for the franchise granted to the franchisee and for the use of city streets, the franchisee shall pay to the city a fee equal to five percent of gross cash receipts resulting from the solid waste services conducted under the franchise. Such fees shall be computed on a quarterly basis and paid within thirty (30) days following the end of each quarterly calendar year period. The franchisee shall maintain an adequate record of gross cash receipts resulting from the solid waste services conducted under the franchise and said records shall be open at all times for audit by authorized personnel designated by the city manager.

В.

Willful misrepresentation of gross cash receipts by the franchisee shall constitute cause for immediate revocation of this franchise, pursuant to <u>Section 8.20.090 of this chapter.</u> <u>Section 8.20.090 of this chapter.</u>

C.

The franchise fee provided for in subsection A of this section shall not relieve the franchisee of the financial responsibility for any current or future revenue or regulatory fee, tax or charge imposed by the city. The franchise fee, however, shall not exceed that which is provided in subsection A of this section for the duration of this franchise and shall be considered in lieu of the present city business license.

[Type here]

Expanded by / Condensed by	
Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	
Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Font col Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	or:
Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Font col Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	or:
Formatted	[
Formatted	(
Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	
Formatted	(
Formatted	<u></u>
Formatted	<u></u>
Formatted	<u></u>
Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	
Formatted	<u> </u>
Formatted	<u></u>
Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	
Formatted	<u></u>
Formatted	<u></u>
Formatted	<u></u>
Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	
Formatted	<u></u>
Formatted	
Formatted	
Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	
Formatted	<u></u>
Formatted	

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not

Formatted

pe here]	Formatted	
	Formatted	
rd. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part); Ord. 89-899 § 6)	Formatted	
8.20.070 - Franchisee responsibility.	Formatted	
	Formatted	
The franchisee shall:	Formatted	
<u>A</u> .	Formatted	
Resource recover or dispose of wastes at sites in compliance with Chapter 459 Oregon Revised Statutes and regulations promulgated thereunder. Any site for disposal or resource recovery	Formatted	
within the city limits must be approved by the city;	Formatted	
В.	Formatted	
Provide and keep in force public liability and automobile liability insurance with a thirty (30) day	Formatted	
cancellation clause in the amount of not less than enetwo million dollars (\$12,000,000.00) relating to a single occurrence, which shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance filed with the city	Formatted	
recorder. This insurance shall indemnify and save the city harmless against liability or damage	Formatted	
which may arise or occur from an injury to persons or property resulting from the franchisee's	Formatted	
operation under this chapter;	Formatted	
Ç.		
Within fifteen (15) days of adoption of the resolution, file with the city recorder a written acceptance of the franchise;	Formatted	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Formatted	
P. Furnish sufficient collection vehicles, containers, facilities, personnel, finances, and scheduled	Formatted	
days for collections in each area of the city as necessary to provide all types of service required	Formatted	
under this chapter or subcontract with others to provide such service pursuant to <u>Section</u>	Formatted	
8.20.120 of this chapter. Section 8.20.120 of this chapter. The franchisee shall maintain a collection system in conformance with all federal, state, regional and local solid waste	Formatted	
management regulations and ensure that every vehicle or container used for the transportation	Formatted	
of solid waste over city streets shall be regularly cleaned and maintained in a sanitary condition;	Formatted	
<u>E</u> .	Formatted	
Provide a cash security deposit or a performance bond of seven thousand five hundred dollars (\$7,500.00) to guarantee reimbursement to the city if costs incurred because of work performed	Formatted	
by the franchisee that does not conform with the requirements of this chapter or other ordinances	Formatted	
of the city or because of failure of the franchisee to meet the terms and conditions of this chapter	Formatted	
in a timely, regular and sanitary manner. The deposit or bond shall continue until one year after expiration or termination of the franchise or until all claims or demands made against the	Formatted	
franchisee have been settled or secured;	Formatted	
ŗ.		
Collect no single family residential solid waste before five a.m. or after seven p.m. unless this	Formatted	
condition is waived by the city manager or his or her designee;	Formatted	
Ģ.	Formatted	
e for the regular collection and disposal of solid waste from city facilities, city parks, city	Formatted	
ewalk containers, and city activity areas and at other locations designated by the city that are hin a franchise area at no cost to the city;	Formatted	
	Formatted	
H. Make collections no less often than once each week, except for will-call collections and drop box	Formatted	
operations, and except as provided in <u>Section 8.20.110</u> of this chapter; <u>Section 8.20.110</u> of this	Formatted	
chapter;	Formatted	
L	Formatted	

Ordinance 2017-006, Exh A to Staff Report November 21, 2017 Page 9 of 16

Type here	erel	Tvpe
-----------	------	------

 Allow inspection by the city of the franchisee's facilities, equipment and personnel during regular- business hours; 	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: A Expanded by / Condensed by	Auto, Not
J. Respond to all calls for special hauling requiring equipment regularly supplied by franchisee within	Formatted: list1, Indent: First line: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	O", Space After: 0
ninety-six (96) hours of receiving said call unless a later pickup is agreeable to the customer, subject to availability of required containers or other equipment;	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: // Expanded by / Condensed by	Auto, Not
J. Provide telephone service so that the franchisee may be contacted during regular business hours,	Formatted: list1, Indent: First line: Opt, Pattern: Clear	O", Space After: 0
Monday through Friday, excepting holidays, and in addition, upon receipt of a written communication about service under this chapter, the franchisee shall, within seven days, reply in writing and furnish a copy of both pieces of correspondence to the city; upon request;	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: A Expanded by / Condensed by	Auto, Not
L. de curbside yard debris collection every other week by providing residential customers with a	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: A Expanded by / Condensed by	Auto, Not
ixty (60) gallon rollcart for such purposes, or provide customers with the equivalent by providing a fty (50) gallon compost bin, for the rates established by Table 8.20.080 of this chapter. Current	Formatted: list1, Indent: First line: Opt, Pattern: Clear	O", Space After: 0
ustomers shall be required to select an option within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the rdinance codified in this chapter. New customers will be required to select an option within thirty 30) days of establishing solid waste collection service. Thereafter, customers may change options	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: A Expanded by / Condensed by	Auto, Not
nce annually within thirty (30) days of January 1st. The franchisee shall be required to notify all ustomers of their options in writing, and may after thirty (30) days assign options to customers	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: A Expanded by / Condensed by	Auto, Not
rho have not responded;	Formatted: list1, Indent: First line: Opt, Pattern: Clear)", Space After: 0
 K. Provide curbside yard debris collection every week by providing residential customers with a sixty (60) gallon roll cart for such purposes; 	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: A Expanded by / Condensed by	Auto, Not
L. Provide the opportunity to recycle all residential, commercial and industrial sources of recyclable material in compliance with this chapter, other city ordinances, applicable metropolitan service	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: A Expanded by / Condensed by	Auto, Not
districtmetro regional government and State Department of Environmental Quality rules and regulations and the Oregon Recycling Opportunity Act (Chapter 729, Oregon Laws, 1983). The opportunity to recycle shall include but not be limited to, on-route or depot collection of source	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: A Expanded by / Condensed by	Auto, Not
separated recyclable material, a public education and promotion program that encourages participation in recycling, and notification to all customers of the opportunity and terms of recycling	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: A Expanded by / Condensed by	Auto, Not
service; N.	Formatted: list1, Indent: First line: () pt, Pattern: Clear	O", Space After: 0
M. Maintain a record of customer complaints and of the franchisee's response to each complaint. Records pertaining to customer complaints must be made available to the city manager upon the city manager's written request. The franchisee shall retain all records for a minimum of three	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: A Expanded by / Condensed by	Auto, Not
years.	Formatted	
0.1.04.040.04.(7.1.4)	Formatted	
Ord. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part); Ord. 94-986 § 1; Ord. 89-899 § 7)	Formatted	
8.20.080 - Rates.	Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt,	Pattern: Clear
/	Formatted	
. The council will by recolution get rates for all called waste collection particles provided by franchises as	Formatted	
The council will by resolution set rates for all solid waste collection services provided by franchisees.	Formatted	
The rates to be charged to all persons by the franchisee shall be reasonable and uniform and shall be	Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt,	Pattern: Clear
based upon the level of service rendered, or required by state or local laws and regulations, haul	Formatted	ſ
	Formatted	
Type here]		

distance, concentration of dwelling units, and other factors which the city council considers to justify variations in rates.

C.

Nothing in this section is intended to prevent:

1.

The reasonable establishment of uniform classes of rates based upon length of haul; type of waste stored, collected, transported, disposed of, salvaged or utilized; or the number, type and location of customers serviceserviced; the type of service; the service required by laws and regulations; or the number, type and location of customer's service; or upon other factors as long as such rates are reasonable based upon cost of the particular service and are approved by the city council in the same manner as other rates;

2

The franchisee from volunteering service at a reduced cost for civic, community, benevolent or charitable programs.

D.

Rates to be charged by the franchisee under this chapter shall be set by the city council by resolution at such times as deemed necessary by the council provided, however, that rates may not be amended more than once every twelve (12) months, except for instances where landfill disposal rates have been increased by the metropolitan service district metro regional government. The council may consider rate amendments to account for increased operating costs directly attributable to landfill disposal costs at any time, or in any frequency. The franchisee shall provide the city with thirty (30) days written notice of any request to amend rates, other than a request pursuant to the annual rate adjustment procedure set out in subsection F below. In amending the rate schedule, the council shall give due consideration to the purposes of this chapter and the direct and indirect costs to the franchisee of doing business, as may be justified and quantified by the franchisee.

E. _The franchisee shall be provided thirty (30) days prior written notice with accompanying justification for a city initiated amendment to the service rate schedule-, other than an adjustment pursuant to the annual rate adjustment procedure set out in subsection F below.

₽.

Any request for a rate adjustment shall conform to the following process:

4.

Notwithstanding any request for an amendment to the rate schedule, the franchisee shall annually supply a report of current income and expense for the current calendar year for services provided within the city. Any request for a rate adjustment must include the projected income and expense for the balance of the year for such service and justification for any proposed rate adjustments.

2

The city manager shall report and make recommendations to the city council within thirty (30) days of submission of an acceptable and complete franchisee report and rate adjustments proposal.

3.

The council shall conduct a public hearing on any proposed rate adjustment.

F.

Unless the council has approved a rate adjustment, other than an annual rate adjustment pursuant to this subsection F or a rate adjustment based solely on landfill disposal rate increases, within the prior twelve months., rate adjustments shall be considered annually using the following procedure:

[Type here]

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted

- 1. On or before March 15th, the franchisee shall file an annual report, in a form established by the city manager, with the city manager for the year ending the immediately previous December 31st. The report is required from the franchisee regardless of whether or not a rate adjustment is requested.
- 2. The city manager shall report to the council by April 15th regarding the franchisee reports and resulting proposed rate adjustments, if any. A copy shall be delivered to the franchisee.
- 3. Unless there is good cause shown and recorded in the minutes of the council, if a rate adjustment is proposed, the council shall set a hearing on the proposed rate adjustment within 60 days of receiving the report from the city manager and shall either approve or disapprove the proposed rate adjustment within 30 days of said hearing.
- 4. The rate adjustment to be proposed by the city manager under subsection 2 above shall be based on the following:
- a. If the profit-rate of return for the franchisee is less than eight percent or more than twelve percent, then the city will undertake a rate study to recommend new rates. The study will be designed to recommend new rates that will be effective on the immediately following January 1st and intended to produce a profitrate of return of ten percent for the calendar year beginning on that date. The study will also determine the expected profit-rate of return for the franchisee during the current calendar year, and that information shall be reported to the franchisee. So long as the actual profit-rate of return for that calendar year is within two percent more or less than the expected profitrate of return, no rate study or further rate adjustments will be needed based on that calendar year's report.
- b. If the profit-rate of return for the franchisee is between eight and twelve percent, the proposed rate adjustment will be effective on the immediately following January 1st and will be indexed to the US Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics CPI-U Over-the-Year Percent Change Annual Average for Portland-Salem (the "Index"). If the profit-rate of return is eight to nine percent, then the proposed rate adjustment will be 1.25 times the Index. If the profit-rate of return is greater than nine percent but less than eleven percent, then the proposed rate adjustment will be equal to the Index. If the rate of return is greater than eleven percent but less than twelve percent, then the proposed rate adjustment will be 0.75 times the Index.
- 45. Notwithstanding the foregoing, cost of service studies will be conducted at a minimum of once every six years
- G. Rates established by the council are fixed rates and the franchisee shall not charge more or less than the fixed rate unless pursuant to subsection (C)(2) of this section.

G.

H. Any services not included in the rate schedule shall be charged at the reasonable cost of providing the service taking into consideration the factors utilized in established scheduled rates pursuant to this section.

н

In establishing rates, the council may set uniform rates, uniform rates by zone and different rates for collectors where there is a service and cost justification.

Į.

J. Any person who receives solid waste service from the franchisee shall be responsible for payment for such service and the franchisee shall be solely responsible for the billing, collection and accounting of said payments. The city shall not be responsible or liable for unpaid, delinquent or noncollectible payments for services.

(Ord. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part); Ord. 01-1113 § 1; Ord. 00-1088 § 1; Ord. 94-986 § 2; Ord. 89-899 § 8)

[Type here]

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Footer, Tab stops: 3.35", Centered + 6.69", Right

Ordinance 2017-006, Exh A to Staff Report November 21, 2017 Page 12 of 16

[Typ	pe here]	
•	8.20.090 - Transfer, suspension, modification or revocation of franchise.	>
A.		
	The franchisee shall not transfer this franchise or any portion thereof to other persons within sixty (60) days prior written notice of the intent to transfer, and the enactment by the city council of an ordinance authorizing the transfer. The city council may approve the transfer if the transferee meets all applicable requirements met by the original franchisee. The city council may attach to the authorizing ordinance whatever conditions it deems appropriate to guarantee maintenance of service and compliance with this chapter.	_
В.		/,
	Failure to comply with a written notice to provide the services required by this chapter or to otherwise comply with the provisions of this chapter after written notice and a reasonable opportunity to comply shall be grounds for modification, revocation or suspension of the franchise.	/
	1 .	/
	After written notice from the city that such grounds exist, franchisee shall have thirty (30) days from the date of mailing of the notice in which to comply or to request a public hearing before the city council.	
	2.	_
	If franchisee fails to comply within the specified time or fails to comply with the order of the city	
	council entered upon the basis of written findings at the public hearing, the city council may suspend, modify or revoke franchise or make such action contingent upon continued noncompliance.	
	3.	
	In the event that the city finds an immediate and serious danger to the public through creation of a health or safety hazard, as a result of the actions of the franchisee, the city may take action to alleviate such conditions or suspend or revoke the franchise within a time specified in the notice to the franchisee and without prior written notice or a public hearing.	
(Or	d. 89-899 § 9)	

Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted (...) **Formatted Formatted Formatted** (... **Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted Formatted**

Formatted

Formatted

Formatted

(Ord. 89-899 § 10)

waste service.

8.20.110 - Suspension of service.

8.20.100 - Preventing interruption of service.

The franchisee shall not suspend or terminate service to all or a portion of his or her customers unless:

The franchisee agrees as a condition of this franchise that whenever the city council finds that the failure of service or threatened failure of service would result in creation of an immediate and serious health

hazard or serious public nuisance, the city council may, after a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours written

or verbal notice to the franchisee, provide for or authorize another person to temporarily provide the service or to use and operate the land, facilities and equipment of a franchisee to provide emergency service. The

city council shall return any seized property and business upon abatement of the actual or threatened interruption of service, and after payment to the city for any net cost incurred in the operation of the solid

Α.

Street or road access is blocked and there is no alternate route, provided that the franchisee shallrestore service not later than twenty-four (24) hours after street or road access is opened.

[Type here]	S	Formatted	
		Formatted	
В.		Formatted	
Excessive weather conditions render providing service unduly hazardous to persons providing		Formatted	
service or to the public or such termination is caused by accidents or casualties resulting by an act of God or a public enemy.		Formatted	[
Ç.		Formatted	
A customer has not paid for provided service after a regular billing and after a written delinquency	4	Formatted	
notice, which notice shall not be sent less than fifteen (15) days after the date of mailing of the		Formatted	(
regular billing.		Formatted	
D.		Formatted	
Other than for non-payment for provided service, ninety (90) days written notice is given to the city council and to affected customers and written approval is obtained from the city council.			
Ę.		Formatted	
The customer does not comply with the service standards of Section 8.20.140 Section 8.20.140		Formatted	
of this chapter, provided that the customer is given a thirty (30) day written notice to comply with		Formatted	
the applicable service standards.	//	Formatted	
(Ord. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part); Ord. 89-899 § 11)	// /	Formatted	
(Old. 04-010 § 1 (Exil. A)(pail); Old. 89-899 § 11)	.\(Formatted	
8.20.120 - Subcontracts.	// Y	Formatted	[
	, \Y	Formatted	
The franchisee may subcontract with others to provide a portion of the service where the franchisee does not have the necessary equipment or capacity to provide said service. Such a subcontract shall not	1	Formatted	
oes not have the necessary equipment or capacity to provide said service. Such a subcontract shall not believe the franchisee of total responsibility for providing and maintaining service and from compliance with		Formatted	(
his chapter. Except where emergency incidental service is provided by a subcontractor, such subcontract	1	Formatted	(
shall be in writing and shall be filed with the city recorder and approved by the city manager prior to the commencement of actual service by the subcontractor.		Formatted	(
		Formatted	
Ord. 89-899 § 12)		Formatted	
8.20.130 - Enforcement officers; franchisee right of action; damages.			
8.20.130 - Emolcement officers, franchisee right of action, damages.		Formatted	
Α.		Formatted	
The city manager shall have the authority to enforce this chapter and rules and regulations adopted		Formatted	[
pursuant thereto. The city manager may designate appropriate city employees, including police officers, and others to enter premises to ascertain compliance with this chapter's provisions. No	Ą	Formatted	
premises shall be entered without first attempting to obtain the consent of either the owner or person		Formatted	
in control thereof, if different. If consent cannot be obtained, the city representative shall secure a search warrant from the municipal court before attempting to gain entry and shall have recourse to	///	Formatted	
every other remedy provided by law to secure such entry.	///	Formatted	
В.	// {	Formatted	
A franchisee shall have a cause of action in any court of competent jurisdiction against any person or	//	Formatted	(
entity providing service in the city limits without first having a franchise in violation of	// À	Formatted	
SMC <u>-8.20.020(B)</u> , 8.20.020(B), The cause of action may seek any and all appropriate relief, including injunctive relief.	//}	Formatted	
1.		Formatted	(
Notice to City Managercity manager, Before commencing an action under this section, the		Formatted	
franchisee shall provide a minimum of thirty (30) days' written notice to the city manager who then	(Formatted	
may elect to either enforce the provisions of this chapter or allow the franchisee to go forward. If		-	
the city, manager fails to respond to the franchisee's notice, the franchisee may proceed with its		Formatted	

action. A franchisee may not commence or maintain an action if the city manager elects to pursue	Farmand	
enforcement.	Formatted	
2.	Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font cold Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	or:
Damages. Any person or entity providing solid waste service within Sherwood's city limits without first having a franchise, will be liable for and subject to the following:	Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	 r
	Formatted	
Lost customer revenue due the franchisee;	Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font cold	or:
b.	Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
Franchise fees owed the city;	Formatted: list2, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clean	<u> </u>
ç.	Formatted	
Five hundred dollars (\$500.00) liquidated damages for each day that each violation of the Code occurred; and	Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font cold Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	or:
d .	Formatted: list2, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	٢
Other appropriate legal or equitable remedy available to the franchisee and/or the city.	Formatted	
The court shall award reasonable attorney fees to the prevailing party.	Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font cold Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	or:
<u>c</u> .	Formatted: list2, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	r
Indemnity. The city shall have no liability for franchisee's attorney fees and costs incurred pursuing enforcement under this section. Any franchisee electing to pursue its rights under subsection B above,	Formatted	
shall indemnify and hold the city harmless for any and all costs, damages or liabilities incurred by the city arising as a result of franchisee's pursuit of an enforcement action.	Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font cold Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	or:
(Ord 2012 001 8.2. 2.5.2012; Ord 80.900 8.12)	Formatted: list2, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	 r
(Ord. 2013-001, § 2, 2-5-2013; Ord. 89-899 § 13)	Formatted	
8.20.140 - Containers/collections limitations.	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
ATo achieve the purposes of this chapter, prevent recurring injuries to collectors and other persons, to	Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font cold Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	or:
comply with safety standards of the State Accident Insurance Fund; and to comply with all reasonable safety, health and environmental safeguards:	Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	r
1.	Formatted	
Solid waste cansroll carts will be provided by the customer shall:franchisee.	Formatted	
	Formatted	
Be a standard can or twenty (20) gallon can;	Formatted	
b-	Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	r
Have a round bottom, sides tapering outward to the opening at the top providing for unobstructed	Formatted	
dumping of the contents, a bail or two handles on opposite sides, a close fitting lid with handle,	Formatted	
watertight waterproof, rodent resistant, and easily cleanable and will not crack or break in freezing weather;	Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	r
	Formatted	
Not to exceed sixty (60) pounds gross loaded weight.	Formatted	<u></u>
There to exceed sixty (vo) pounds gross loaded weight.	Formatted	$\overline{}$
2.	Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear	(
Putrescible material shall be placed in plastic bags or securely wrapped in paper after being drained of liquids before placing in cans, tote barrels, roll carts, or containers.		
[Type here]	Formatted	

<i>3</i> .		Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font colo
Sunken refuse cans, tote barrels or containers shall not be used, unless they are placed		Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by
above ground by the owner for service.	\geq	Formatted
4.		Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear
On the scheduled collection day, the carry-out service customers shall provide safe access to a pickup point which does not jeopardize the safety of the driver of a collection vehicle or the		Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font colo Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by
motoring public or create a hazard or risk to the person providing the service. Cans, tote barrelsRoll carts, and containers must be visible from a public right-of-way which may be serviced		Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear
and driven to by collection vehicles where practical. This form of access must not require the	-	Formatted
collector to pass behind an automobile or other vehicle or to pass under low hanging obstructions such as eaves, tree branches, clotheslines or electrical wires which obstruct safe passage to and from cans. CansRoll carts must be at ground level, outside of garages, fences and other	///	Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font colo Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by
enclosures, and within one hundred (100) feet of the straight right-of-way or curb. Where the city		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
manager, or his or her designee, finds that a private bridge, culvert or other private structure or	1//2	Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear
road is incapable or safely carrying the weight of the collection vehicle, the collector shall not	////	Formatted
enter onto such structure or road, and customer shall provide a safe alternative access point or system.		Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font colo Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by
5.	////	Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear
The curb-side service customer shall place cans or tote barrels roll carts, alongside a public street	$^{\prime\prime}//_{\lambda}$	Formatted
or other accessible place, at a location designated by the franchisee		Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font colo
All solid waste cans and tote barrels roll carts, located at single-family residences shall be placed.	///!	Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by
ogether in one location on the regularly scheduled collection day.	///	Formatted
7.		Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear
All solid waste receptacles, including but not limited to cans, tote barrelsroll carts, containers and drop boxes, shall be maintained in a safe and sanitary condition by the customer.	//	Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font colo Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by
8.		Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear
Solid waste service customers shall place items not intended for pickup at least threefifteen feet		Formatted
om solid waste service customers shall place items not interface to pickup at least three interfaces.		
9.		Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font colo Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by
No person shall place any hazardous waste as defined by or pursuant to ORS Chapter 466 out		Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear
for collection by the franchisee or place it in any container supplied by the franchisee without prior written notification and acceptance by the franchisee and also upon compliance with any		Formatted
requirements of ORS Chapter 466 and any rules or regulations thereunder.		Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font colo Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by
10. A container for hazardous or other special wastes shall be appropriately labeled and placed in a		Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear
location inaccessible to the public. If the container is reusable, it shall be suitable for cleaning and		Formatted
be cleaned.		
		Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font colo Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by
<u>,</u> 11.		Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear
No person shall use any solid waste collection container of thirty-two (32) gallons or more in-		Formatted
No person shall use any solid waste collection container of thirty-two (32) gallons or more in- capacity unless it is supplied or approved by the franchisee, on the basis of safety, equipment	\geq	
No person shall use any solid waste collection container of thirty-two (32) gallons or more in- capacity unless it is supplied or approved by the franchisee, on the basis of safety, equipment compatibility, availability of equipment and the purposes of this chapter.		Formatted
No person shall use any solid waste collection container of thirty-two (32) gallons or more in- capacity unless it is supplied or approved by the franchisee, on the basis of safety, equipment compatibility, availability of equipment and the purposes of this chapter. 12.		Formatted Formatted: list1 Space After: 0 pt Pattern: Clear
No person shall use any solid waste collection container of thirty-two (32) gallons or more in- capacity unless it is supplied or approved by the franchisee, on the basis of safety, equipment compatibility, availability of equipment and the purposes of this chapter. 12.		Formatted: list1, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clear
No person shall use any solid waste collection container of thirty-two (32) gallons or more in- capacity unless it is supplied or approved by the franchisee, on the basis of safety, equipment compatibility, availability of equipment and the purposes of this chapter. 12. barrels Roll carts, containers and drop boxes supplied by the franchisee shall be cleaned		

Ordinance 2017-006, Exh A to Staff Report November 21, 2017 Page 16 of 16

[.,][ere]			
В.			Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font col	or:
	stationary compactor or other container for commercial or industrial use shall exceed the safe		Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clea	r
a g	group of customers requiring special service, the city council may require the franchisee to provide	1	Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not	!
	vehicles capable of handling specialized loads including, but not limited to, front loading collection cks and drop-box trucks and systems.		Expanded by / Condensed by	
C.	prevent injuries to users and collectors, stationary compacting devices for handling solid wastes		Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
sha	all comply with applicable federal and state safety regulations.		Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font col- Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	or:
	y vehicle used by any person to transport wastes shall be so loaded and operated as to prevent the stes from dripping, dropping, sifting, blowing, or otherwise escaping from the vehicle onto any public		Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
righ	ht-of-way or lands adjacent thereto.	\ \ Y	Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clea	r
(Ord. 8	9-899 § 14)		Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
•	8.20.150 - Offensive waste prohibited.		Formatted: Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font col Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	or:
	person shall have waste on his or her property that is offensive or hazardous to the health or safety		Formatted: list0, Space After: 0 pt, Pattern: Clea	r
	s or which creates offensive odors or a condition of unsightliness.		Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
	9-899 § 15)		Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed by	
•	8.20.160 - Unauthorized deposit prohibited.		Formatted	Γ.
	person shall, without prior authorization and compliance with requirements of this chapter, deposit		Formatted	
	on public property or the private property of another person. Streets and other public places are not lead as places to deposit waste except where specific provisions for containers have been made.	Y/////	Formatted	
		\\\\(Formatted	(.
Ord. 8	9-899 § 16)	\\\\\	Formatted	
	8.20.170 - Violation—Penalty.	\\\\\	Formatted	
		11111	Formatted	(.
	plation by any person of the provisions of this chapter shall be deemed to be a misdemeanor and punishable upon conviction by a fine of not more than five hundred dollars (\$500.00).	\\\\\	Formatted	
	9 § 18)	\\\\\	Formatted	
. 65-65	5 4 101	11111	Formatted	Γ.
	√	\\\\Y	Formatted	Γ.
		(\\\\\	Formatted	
		//////	Formatted	(.
		\\\\	Formatted	(.
			Formatted	(.
			Formatted	(.
		\}	Formatted	
		Ŷ	Formatted: historynote0	
			Formatted	(.
		/		



ORDINANCE 2017-006

AMENDING SOLID WASTE CODE

WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood has previously adopted municipal code language governing solid waste management in Chapter 8.20 of its municipal code; and

WHEREAS, the policies and procedures outlined in Chapter 8.20 are essentially the terms and conditions attached to any franchises granted under this particular chapter; and

WHEREAS, the sole franchisee that is currently regulated by Chapter 8.20 is Pride Disposal Company; and

WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood and Pride Disposal Company are both in support of creating new code language governing rate reviews; and

WHEREAS, the City of Tigard has previously adopted code language governing rate reviews that has been effective; and

WHEREAS, City of Sherwood staff has proposed amendments to the rate review process based on the process used in the City of Tigard; and

WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood and Pride Disposal Company are also interested in making a series of housekeeping changes within Chapter 8.20 to reflect current practices and procedures; and

WHEREAS, City of Sherwood staff has proposed amendments to the code reflecting said housekeeping changes.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

- After full and due consideration of the information presented at the public hearings held on November 21, 2017 and December 5, 2017, the City Council finds that the text of Chapter 8.20 of the Sherwood Municipal Code should be amended to read as set forth in Exhibit 1.
- **Section 2.** The proposed amendment to the Sherwood Municipal Code identified in Exhibit 1 is hereby **APPROVED**
- <u>Section 3.</u> The City Manager is hereby directed and authorized to adopt rules and to take such other actions as may be necessary to implement this Ordinance, including necessary updates to the Municipal Code.

Section 4	This Ordinance shall become e Council and approval by the Ma		s enactment b	y the City
Duly passed	I by the City Council this 5 th of I	December, 2017.		
		Lee Weislogel, Mayor	r	Date
Attest:				
Sylvia Murph	y, MMC, City Recorder	Griffin Young Garlan Kuiper Weislo	nd	<u>NAY</u>

Chapter 8.20 - SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

Sections:

8.20.010 - Short title.

The ordinance codified in this chapter shall be known as the city of Sherwood solid waste management ordinance and may be so cited and shall be hereinafter referred to as this chapter.

(Ord. 89-899 § 1)

8.20.020 - Purpose, policy and scope.

- A. It is declared to be in the public interest for the city to establish a policy relative to solid waste management and to:
 - 1. Provide sufficient waste volume to sustain solid waste management facilities necessary to achieve resource recovery goals established by the city, county, State Department of Environmental Quality and metro regional government;
 - 2. Provide the basis for agreements with other governmental units and persons for regional flow control to such facilities:
 - 3. Ensure safe accumulation, storage, collection, transportation, disposal or resource recovery of solid waste, and protect the public health, safety and welfare;
 - Ensure maintenance of a financially stable, reliable solid waste collection and disposal service;
 - 5. Ensure rates that are just, fair, reasonable and adequate to provide necessary service to the public;
 - 6. Prohibit rate preference and other discriminatory practices which benefit one user at the expense of other users of the service or the general public;
 - 7. Conserve energy and material resources and meet statewide goals of recycling usable wastes;
 - 8. Eliminate overlapping service to reduce truck traffic, street wear, air pollution and noise;
 - 9. Provide standards for solid waste service and public responsibilities; and
 - 10. Provide resource recovery by and through the franchisee.

B. No person shall:

- 1. Provide solid waste service, offer to provide service or advertise for the performance of service without having obtained a franchise from the city;
- 2. Accumulate, store, collect, transport, transfer, dispose of or resource recover solid waste except as in compliance with this chapter, other city ordinances, and Chapter 459 Oregon Revised Statutes dealing with solid waste management, and regulations and amendments promulgated under any of the foregoing.

C. Nothing in this chapter shall:

1. Prohibit any person from transporting directly to an authorized disposal or recycling or resource recovery facility, or utilizing or resource recover solid waste produced by himself or herself so long as he or she complies with this chapter, other city ordinances, and Chapter 459 Oregon Revised Statutes dealing with solid waste management, and regulations promulgated under any of the foregoing. Provided however, that except as provided herein, a lessor or property owner shall not provide service to a tenant, lessee or occupant except through the franchisee;

- 2. Prohibit any person from contracting with any other governmental agency to provide solid waste service;
- 3. Prohibit any person from transporting, disposing of or resource recovering, sewage sludge, septic tank pumpings and cesspool pumpings;
- 4. Prohibit any person licensed as a motor vehicle wrecker under ORS 481.345 et seq. from collecting, transporting, disposing of or utilizing motor vehicles or motor vehicle parts;
- 5. Prohibit the city council by amendment to this chapter from withdrawing or modifying certain solid waste services on the basis of finding that such service is not necessary for the implementation of the purposes of this chapter or a city, county or metro regional government solid waste management plan;
- 6. Prohibit any person transporting solid waste through the city that is not collected within the city;
- 7. Prohibit a contractor employed to demolish, construction, or remodel a building or structure, including but not limited to land clearing operations and construction wastes, from hauling waste created in connection with such employment;
- 8. Prohibit the occasional collection, transportation and reuse of repairable or cleanable discards or source separated solid waste for recycling or resource recovery by private charitable or nonprofit organizations for the purpose of raising funds for charitable, civic, or benevolent activity provided that the activity is conducted in accordance with the terms and under the conditions contained in this chapter;
- 9. Prohibit the operation at a fixed location of a facility where the generator, producer, source or franchised collector of solid waste brings that waste for transfer, disposal or resource recovery;
- 10. Prohibit the collection, transportation or redemption of beverage containers under ORS Chapter 459;
- 11. Prohibit a person from transporting or disposing of waste that he or she produces as an incidental part of janitorial services; gardening or landscaping services; rendering; or other similar and related occupations;
- 12. Require the franchisee to store, collect, transport, dispose of or resource recover any hazardous waste as defined by or pursuant to ORS Chapter 466.

(Ord. 89-899 § 2)

8.20.030 - Definitions.

"Carry-out service" means service whereby the franchisee will collect properly stored solid waste located on the customer's property, provided said waste is clearly visible and accessible to the franchisee.

"Charitable or nonprofit organization" means any person or persons organized and existing for charitable, benevolent, humane, patriotic, religious, philanthropic, recreational, social, educational, civic, fraternal, or other nonprofit purpose, and who is exempt from federal and state income taxes as a nonprofit organization.

"Compensation" means any type of consideration paid for service including, but not limited to, the proceeds from resource recovery or recycling, rent, lease payments, and any other direct or indirect provision for payment of money, goods, services or benefits by owners, tenants, lessees, occupants or similar persons or the exchange of services between persons.

"Council" means the city council of the city of Sherwood.

"Curb-side service" means service whereby the franchisee will collect properly stored solid waste placed by the customer alongside a public street or some other location designated by the franchisee.

"Franchise" means the right to provide service granted to a person pursuant to this chapter.

Ordinance 2017-006, Exhibit 1 November 21, 2017 "Nonrecycling customer" means a regular customer of the franchisee that elects not to enroll in the recycling program or fails to provide recyclable materials at least once monthly, as determined by the franchisee's records.

"Person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, trust, firm, estate, joint venture or other public or private legal entity.

"Putrescible material" means organic materials that can decompose and may give rise to foul-smelling, offensive odors or products.

"Recycling customer" means a regular customer of the franchisee who enrolls in the recycling program and provides recyclable materials curbside at least once monthly, as determined by the franchisee's records.

"Resource recovery" means the process of obtaining useful material or energy resources from solid waste and includes:

- 1. "Energy recovery," which means recovery in which all or a part of the solid waste materials are processed to utilize the heat content, or other forms of energy, of or from the material.
- 2. "Material recovery," which means any process of obtaining from solid waste, by presegregation or otherwise, materials which still have useful physical or chemical properties after serving a specific purpose and can, therefore, be reused or recycled for the same or other purpose.
- 3. "Recycling," which means any process by which solid waste materials are transformed into new products in such manner that the original products may lose their identity. The process includes collection, transportation, storage and transfer of solid waste and placing the solid waste in the stream of commerce for resource recovery.
- 4. "Reuse," which means the return of a commodity into the economic stream for use in the same kind of application as before without change in its identity.

"Roll cart" means a wheeled, rigid plastic can provided by the franchisee to their customers.

"Service" means the collection, transportation, storage, transfer, disposal of or resource recovery of solid waste using the public streets of the city to provide service, and including solid waste management.

"Solid waste" means:

- 1. All putrescible and non-putrescible wastes, including, but not limited to garbage, rubbish, refuse, ashes, waste paper, cardboard, yard debris, compost, tires, equipment and furniture; commercial, industrial, demolition and construction wastes; discarded or abandoned vehicles or parts thereof; discarded home or industrial appliances; manure, vegetable and animal solid and semi-solid wastes, dead animals, infectious waste as defined in ORS 459.386 organic food waste, electronics and associated components, mattresses, junk and other wastes. Solid waste shall not include:
 - Sewer sludge and septic tank and cesspool pumping, chemical toilet waste or other sludge;
 - b. Reusable beverage containers as defined in ORS 459A.700 and 459A.725;
 - c. Material used for fertilizer or for other productive agricultural operations in growing or harvesting crops and the raising of fowl or animals.
- 2. The fact that materials that would otherwise come within the definition of solid waste may from time to time have value and thus be utilized does not remove them from the definition.

"Solid waste management" means the prevention or reduction of solid waste; management of the storage, transfer, collection, transportation, treatment, utilization, processing and final disposal of solid waste; or resource recovery from solid waste; and facilities used for those activities.

"Source separation" means the separation or setting aside of waste, by the source generator or producer of the waste, for recycling or reuse.

"Waste" means material that is no longer wanted or usable by the source, the source generator or producer of the material, and the material is to be disposed of or resource recovered by another person, and includes both source separated material and nonsource separated materials.

(Ord. 2013-001, § 1, 2-5-2013; Ord. 98-1049 § 4; Ord. 90-915 § 2; Ord. 89-899 § 3)

8.20.040 - Franchises.

- A. Subject to the provisions of this chapter, other city ordinances, and the City Charter, the council may by resolution grant exclusive or nonexclusive franchises, with or without competitive bidding, to provide service over and upon the streets of a franchise area within the city. Nonperformance of the terms and conditions of the franchise agreement may result in financial and operating penalties to the franchisee, and may result in the loss or limitation of the franchisee's right to provide services.
- B. Where any area is annexed to the city of Sherwood and the area had been franchised by Washington County for solid waste collection service prior to annexation, the county franchise and franchise holder shall be recognized for that particular area subject to the provisions of ORS 459.085(3). If the area was franchised by Washington County to a city franchisee, that area shall be added by resolution to a city franchise area.

(Ord. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part): Ord. 89-899 § 4)

8.20.045 - Franchise—Application, application approval, and statement of ownership.

- A. Applicants for a solid waste management franchise under this chapter must file with the city manager an application in a format approved by the city manager which shall at least provide the following information:
 - 1. Full name;
 - 2. Permanent home and business address:
 - 3. Trade and firm name;
 - 4. If a joint venture, a partnership or limited partnership, the names of all partners and of their percentage of participation and their permanent addresses; if a corporation, the names and permanent addresses of all the officers;
 - 5. Evidence showing that:
 - An applicant for a solid waste collection and transportation franchise has arranged for disposal of all solid waste collected or transported to an authorized disposal site where it may legally be accepted and disposed of, and the location of that disposal site; or
 - An applicant for a curbside recycling collection and transportation franchise has arranged for the sanitary storage and recycling of the collected materials and proper disposal of any nonrecyclable residue;
 - 6. Facts showing that the applicant is qualified to render efficient solid waste or curbside recyclables collection and transportation service;
 - 7. Facts showing that the applicant has adequate experience in the collection and transportation of solid waste or curbside recyclables;
 - 8. A description of all vehicles and equipment used or intended to be used by the franchisee or its subcontractors, including vehicle type, license number, age and condition;

- 9. A statement certifying that the vehicles and equipment identified are in compliance with the requirements of this chapter, the state minimum standards for solid waste handling and disposal, applicable provisions of the vehicle code, and other legal requirements;
- 10. Facts demonstrating that the applicant owns or has access to suitable facilities for the storage, maintenance and cleaning of vehicles and equipment;
- 11. Evidence showing that the issuance of a franchise is in the public interest; and
- 12. Such other facts or information as the city manager may require.
- B. Upon receipt of a completed application for a franchise, the city manager will determine if the applicant meets all the requirements of this chapter and all applicable state and federal laws and regulations.
 - 1. Decision. A decision to grant or not to grant the franchise will be made by the city council within one hundred twenty (120) days from the receipt of a complete application.
 - 2. Acceptance. By signing the designated franchise acceptance, the applicant accepts all of the terms and conditions specified in the franchise.
 - 3. Appeal. If the city council determines that a franchise will not be granted or if the decision to grant or not grant the franchise is not made within one hundred twenty (120) days, the applicant has the right to a hearing before the city council. A request for a hearing must be made by the applicant in writing to the city recorder within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of notice of denial or within fifteen (15) calendar days after the one hundred twenty- (120) day has passed. Upon receipt of the written request for hearing, the city recorder will set the matter for hearing on a date not more than sixty (60) days after the receipt of the written request. The city recorder will give written notice of the time, date and place of hearing to the applicant and the public. At the hearing, the applicant has the burden of proof to show facts demonstrating that the applicant meets the requirements of this chapter and applicable state and federal laws and regulations, and that the granting of the franchise is required by the public safety, health, welfare, convenience or necessity. The city council will make its decision within fifteen (15) days after the close of the hearing on appeal. The decision of the city council is final.
- C. Every franchisee must file a statement of ownership with the city manager by July 1st of each year and verify it as true and correct under the penalty of perjury. This statement must be made in a form acceptable to the city manager.

(Ord. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part))

8.20.050 - Franchise term.

- A. The rights, privileges and initial franchise granted herein shall continue and be in full force for a period of ten years up to and including November 1, 1999, subject to terms, conditions and payment of franchise fees to the city as set forth in this chapter.
- B. On November 1st of each year the franchise granted to franchisee shall be renewed for a ten year period starting from that annual renewal date without any action from the council unless the council acts to terminate the franchise at the end of the ten year period then in effect by giving written notice to franchisee prior to the annual renewal date.

(Ord. 89-899 § 5)

8.20.060 - Franchise fees.

A. As compensation for the franchise granted to the franchisee and for the use of city streets, the franchisee shall pay to the city a fee equal to five percent of gross cash receipts resulting from the solid waste services conducted under the franchise. Such fees shall be computed on a quarterly basis

- and paid within thirty (30) days following the end of each quarterly calendar year period. The franchisee shall maintain an adequate record of gross cash receipts resulting from the solid waste services conducted under the franchise and said records shall be open at all times for audit by authorized personnel designated by the city manager.
- B. Willful misrepresentation of gross cash receipts by the franchisee shall constitute cause for immediate revocation of this franchise, pursuant to Section 8.20.090 of this chapter.
- C. The franchise fee provided for in subsection A of this section shall not relieve the franchisee of the financial responsibility for any current or future revenue or regulatory fee, tax or charge imposed by the city. The franchise fee, however, shall not exceed that which is provided in subsection A of this section for the duration of this franchise and shall be considered in lieu of the present city business license.

(Ord. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part); Ord. 89-899 § 6)

8.20.070 - Franchisee responsibility.

The franchisee shall:

- A. Resource recover or dispose of wastes at sites in compliance with Chapter 459 Oregon Revised Statutes and regulations promulgated thereunder. Any site for disposal or resource recovery within the city limits must be approved by the city;
- B. Provide and keep in force public liability and automobile liability insurance with a thirty (30) day cancellation clause in the amount of not less than two million dollars (\$2,000,000.00) relating to a single occurrence, which shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance filed with the city recorder. This insurance shall indemnify and save the city harmless against liability or damage which may arise or occur from an injury to persons or property resulting from the franchisee's operation under this chapter;
- C. Within fifteen (15) days of adoption of the resolution, file with the city recorder a written acceptance of the franchise;
- D. Furnish sufficient collection vehicles, containers, facilities, personnel, finances, and scheduled days for collections in each area of the city as necessary to provide all types of service required under this chapter or subcontract with others to provide such service pursuant to Section 8.20.120 of this chapter. The franchisee shall maintain a collection system in conformance with all federal, state, regional and local solid waste management regulations and ensure that every vehicle or container used for the transportation of solid waste over city streets shall be regularly cleaned and maintained in a sanitary condition;
- E. Provide a cash security deposit or a performance bond of seven thousand five hundred dollars (\$7,500.00) to guarantee reimbursement to the city if costs incurred because of work performed by the franchisee that does not conform with the requirements of this chapter or other ordinances of the city or because of failure of the franchisee to meet the terms and conditions of this chapter in a timely, regular and sanitary manner. The deposit or bond shall continue until one year after expiration or termination of the franchise or until all claims or demands made against the franchisee have been settled or secured;
- F. Collect no single family residential solid waste before five a.m. or after seven p.m. unless this condition is waived by the city manager or his or her designee;
- G. Make collections no less often than once each week, except for will-call collections and drop box operations, and except as provided in Section 8.20.110 of this chapter;
- H. Allow inspection by the city of the franchisee's facilities, equipment and personnel during regular business hours;

- I. Respond to all calls for special hauling requiring equipment regularly supplied by franchisee within ninety-six (96) hours of receiving said call unless a later pickup is agreeable to the customer, subject to availability of required containers or other equipment;
- J. Provide telephone service so that the franchisee may be contacted during regular business hours, Monday through Friday, excepting holidays, and in addition, upon receipt of a written communication about service under this chapter, the franchisee shall, within seven days, reply in writing and furnish a copy of both pieces of correspondence to the city upon request;
- K. Provide curbside yard debris collection every week by providing residential customers with a sixty (60) gallon roll cart for such purposes;
- L. Provide the opportunity to recycle all residential, commercial and industrial sources of recyclable material in compliance with this chapter, other city ordinances, applicable metro regional government and State Department of Environmental Quality rules and regulations and the Oregon Recycling Opportunity Act (Chapter 729, Oregon Laws, 1983). The opportunity to recycle shall include but not be limited to, on-route or depot collection of source separated recyclable material, a public education and promotion program that encourages participation in recycling, and notification to all customers of the opportunity and terms of recycling service;
- M. Maintain a record of customer complaints and of the franchisee's response to each complaint. Records pertaining to customer complaints must be made available to the city manager upon the city manager's written request. The franchisee shall retain all records for a minimum of three years.

(Ord. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part); Ord. 94-986 § 1; Ord. 89-899 § 7)

8.20.080 - Rates.

- A. The council will by resolution set rates for all solid waste collection services provided by franchisees.
- B. The rates to be charged to all persons by the franchisee shall be reasonable and uniform and shall be based upon the level of service rendered, or required by state or local laws and regulations, haul distance, concentration of dwelling units, and other factors which the city council considers to justify variations in rates.
- C. Nothing in this section is intended to prevent:
 - 1. The reasonable establishment of uniform classes of rates based upon length of haul; type of waste stored, collected, transported, disposed of, salvaged or utilized; or the number, type and location of customers serviced; the type of service; the service required by laws and regulations; or upon other factors as long as such rates are reasonable based upon cost of the particular service and are approved by the city council in the same manner as other rates;
 - 2. The franchisee from volunteering service at a reduced cost for civic, community, benevolent or charitable programs.
- D. Rates to be charged by the franchisee under this chapter shall be set by the city council by resolution at such times as deemed necessary by the council, provided, however, that rates may not be amended more than once every twelve (12) months, except for instances where landfill disposal rates have been increased by the metro regional government. The council may consider rate amendments to account for increased operating costs directly attributable to landfill disposal costs at any time, or in any frequency. The franchisee shall provide the city with thirty (30) days written notice of any request to amend rates, other than a request pursuant to the annual rate adjustment procedure set out in subsection F below. In amending the rate schedule, the council shall give due consideration to the purposes of this chapter and the direct and indirect costs to the franchisee of doing business, as may be justified and quantified by the franchisee.

- E. The franchisee shall be provided thirty (30) days prior written notice with accompanying justification for a city initiated amendment to the service rate schedule, other than an adjustment pursuant to the annual rate adjustment procedure set out in subsection F below.
- F. Unless the council has approved a rate adjustment, other than an annual rate adjustment pursuant to this subsection F or a rate adjustment based solely on landfill disposal rate increases, within the prior twelve months, rate adjustments shall be considered annually using the following procedure:
 - 1. On or before March 15th, the franchisee shall file an annual report, in a form established by the city manager, with the city manager for the year ending the immediately previous December 31st. The report is required from the franchisee regardless of whether or not a rate adjustment is requested.
 - 2. The city manager shall report to the council by April 15th regarding the franchisee reports and resulting proposed rate adjustments, if any. A copy shall be delivered to the franchisee.
 - 3. Unless there is good cause shown and recorded in the minutes of the council, if a rate adjustment is proposed, the council shall set a hearing on the proposed rate adjustment within 60 days of receiving the report from the city manager and shall either approve or disapprove the proposed rate adjustment within 30 days of said hearing.
 - 4. The rate adjustment to be proposed by the city manager under subsection 2 above shall be based on the following:
 - a. If the rate of return for the franchisee is less than eight percent or more than twelve percent, then the city will undertake a rate study to recommend new rates. The study will be designed to recommend new rates that will be effective on the immediately following January 1st and intended to produce a rate of return of ten percent for the calendar year beginning on that date. The study will also determine the expected rate of return for the franchisee during the current calendar year, and that information shall be reported to the franchisee. So long as the actual rate of return for that calendar year is within two percent more or less than the expected rate of return, no rate study or further rate adjustments will be needed based on that calendar year's report.
 - b. If the rate of return for the franchisee is between eight and twelve percent, the proposed rate adjustment will be effective on the immediately following January 1st and will be indexed to the US Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics CPI-U Over-the-Year Percent Change Annual Average for Portland-Salem (the "Index"). If the rate of return is eight to nine percent, then the proposed rate adjustment will be 1.25 times the Index. If the rate of return is greater than nine percent but less than eleven percent, then the proposed rate adjustment will be equal to the Index. If the rate of return is greater than eleven percent but less than twelve percent, then the proposed rate adjustment will be 0.75 times the Index.
 - 5. Notwithstanding the foregoing, cost of service studies will be conducted at a minimum of once every six years.
- G. Rates established by the council are fixed rates and the franchisee shall not charge more or less than the fixed rate unless pursuant to subsection (C)(2) of this section.
- H. Any services not included in the rate schedule shall be charged at the reasonable cost of providing the service taking into consideration the factors utilized in established scheduled rates pursuant to this section.
- I. In establishing rates, the council may set uniform rates, uniform rates by zone and different rates for collectors where there is a service and cost justification.
- J. Any person who receives solid waste service from the franchisee shall be responsible for payment for such service and the franchisee shall be solely responsible for the billing, collection and accounting of said payments. The city shall not be responsible or liable for unpaid, delinquent or noncollectible payments for services.

(Ord. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part); Ord. 01-1113 § 1; Ord. 00-1088 § 1; Ord. 94-986 § 2; Ord. 89-899 § 8)

8.20.090 - Transfer, suspension, modification or revocation of franchise.

- A. The franchisee shall not transfer this franchise or any portion thereof to other persons within sixty (60) days prior written notice of the intent to transfer, and the enactment by the city council of an ordinance authorizing the transfer. The city council may approve the transfer if the transferee meets all applicable requirements met by the original franchisee. The city council may attach to the authorizing ordinance whatever conditions it deems appropriate to guarantee maintenance of service and compliance with this chapter.
- B. Failure to comply with a written notice to provide the services required by this chapter or to otherwise comply with the provisions of this chapter after written notice and a reasonable opportunity to comply shall be grounds for modification, revocation or suspension of the franchise.
 - After written notice from the city that such grounds exist, franchisee shall have thirty (30) days from the date of mailing of the notice in which to comply or to request a public hearing before the city council.
 - If franchisee fails to comply within the specified time or fails to comply with the order of the city council entered upon the basis of written findings at the public hearing, the city council may suspend, modify or revoke franchise or make such action contingent upon continued noncompliance.
 - 3. In the event that the city finds an immediate and serious danger to the public through creation of a health or safety hazard, as a result of the actions of the franchisee, the city may take action to alleviate such conditions or suspend or revoke the franchise within a time specified in the notice to the franchisee and without prior written notice or a public hearing.

(Ord. 89-899 § 9)

8.20.100 - Preventing interruption of service.

The franchisee agrees as a condition of this franchise that whenever the city council finds that the failure of service or threatened failure of service would result in creation of an immediate and serious health hazard or serious public nuisance, the city council may, after a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours written or verbal notice to the franchisee, provide for or authorize another person to temporarily provide the service or to use and operate the land, facilities and equipment of a franchisee to provide emergency service. The city council shall return any seized property and business upon abatement of the actual or threatened interruption of service, and after payment to the city for any net cost incurred in the operation of the solid waste service.

(Ord. 89-899 § 10)

8.20.110 - Suspension of service.

The franchisee shall not suspend or terminate service to all or a portion of his or her customers unless:

- A. Street or road access is blocked and there is no alternate route, provided that the franchisee shall restore service not later than twenty-four (24) hours after street or road access is opened.
- B. Excessive weather conditions render providing service unduly hazardous to persons providing service or to the public or such termination is caused by accidents or casualties resulting by an act of God or a public enemy.
- C. A customer has not paid for provided service after a regular billing and after a written delinquency notice, which notice shall not be sent less than fifteen (15) days after the date of mailing of the regular billing.

- D. Other than for non-payment for provided service, ninety (90) days written notice is given to the city council and to affected customers and written approval is obtained from the city council.
- E. The customer does not comply with the service standards of Section 8.20.140 of this chapter, provided that the customer is given a thirty (30) day written notice to comply with the applicable service standards.

(Ord. 04-010 § 1 (Exh. A)(part); Ord. 89-899 § 11)

8.20.120 - Subcontracts.

The franchisee may subcontract with others to provide a portion of the service where the franchisee does not have the necessary equipment or capacity to provide said service. Such a subcontract shall not relieve the franchisee of total responsibility for providing and maintaining service and from compliance with this chapter. Except where emergency incidental service is provided by a subcontractor, such subcontract shall be in writing and shall be filed with the city recorder and approved by the city manager prior to the commencement of actual service by the subcontractor.

(Ord. 89-899 § 12)

8.20.130 - Enforcement officers; franchisee right of action; damages.

- A. The city manager shall have the authority to enforce this chapter and rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto. The city manager may designate appropriate city employees, including police officers, and others to enter premises to ascertain compliance with this chapter's provisions. No premises shall be entered without first attempting to obtain the consent of either the owner or person in control thereof, if different. If consent cannot be obtained, the city representative shall secure a search warrant from the municipal court before attempting to gain entry and shall have recourse to every other remedy provided by law to secure such entry.
- B. A franchisee shall have a cause of action in any court of competent jurisdiction against any person or entity providing service in the city limits without first having a franchise in violation of SMC 8.20.020(B). The cause of action may seek any and all appropriate relief, including injunctive relief.
 - Notice to city manager. Before commencing an action under this section, the franchisee shall
 provide a minimum of thirty (30) days' written notice to the city manager who then may elect to
 either enforce the provisions of this chapter or allow the franchisee to go forward. If the city
 manager fails to respond to the franchisee's notice, the franchisee may proceed with its action. A
 franchisee may not commence or maintain an action if the city manager elects to pursue
 enforcement.
 - 2. Damages. Any person or entity providing solid waste service within Sherwood's city limits without first having a franchise, will be liable for and subject to the following:
 - a. Lost customer revenue due the franchisee;
 - b. Franchise fees owed the city;
 - c. Five hundred dollars (\$500.00) liquidated damages for each day that each violation of the Code occurred; and
 - d. Other appropriate legal or equitable remedy available to the franchisee and/or the city.

The court shall award reasonable attorney fees to the prevailing party.

C. Indemnity. The city shall have no liability for franchisee's attorney fees and costs incurred pursuing enforcement under this section. Any franchisee electing to pursue its rights under subsection B above,

shall indemnify and hold the city harmless for any and all costs, damages or liabilities incurred by the city arising as a result of franchisee's pursuit of an enforcement action.

(Ord. 2013-001, § 2, 2-5-2013; Ord. 89-899 § 13)

8.20.140 - Containers/collections limitations.

- A. To achieve the purposes of this chapter, prevent recurring injuries to collectors and other persons, to comply with safety standards of the State Accident Insurance Fund; and to comply with all reasonable safety, health and environmental safeguards:
 - 1. Solid waste roll carts will be provided by the franchisee.
 - 2. Putrescible material shall be placed in plastic bags or securely wrapped in paper after being drained of liquids before placing in roll carts or containers.
 - 3. Sunken refuse cans shall not be used.
 - 4. On the scheduled collection day, the carry-out service customers shall provide safe access to a pickup point which does not jeopardize the safety of the driver of a collection vehicle or the motoring public or create a hazard or risk to the person providing the service. Roll carts and containers must be visible from a public right-of-way which may be serviced and driven to by collection vehicles where practical. This form of access must not require the collector to pass behind an automobile or other vehicle or to pass under low hanging obstructions such as eaves, tree branches, clotheslines or electrical wires which obstruct safe passage to and from cans. Roll carts must be at ground level, outside of garages, fences and other enclosures, and within one hundred (100) feet of the straight right-of-way or curb. Where the city manager, or his or her designee, finds that a private bridge, culvert or other private structure or road is incapable or safely carrying the weight of the collection vehicle, the collector shall not enter onto such structure or road, and customer shall provide a safe alternative access point or system.
 - 5. The curb-side service customer shall place roll carts alongside a public street or other accessible place, at a location designated by the franchisee.
 - 6. All solid waste roll carts located at single-family residences shall be placed together in one location on the regularly scheduled collection day.
 - 7. All solid waste receptacles, including but not limited to roll carts, containers and drop boxes, shall be maintained in a safe and sanitary condition by the customer.
 - 8. Solid waste service customers shall place items not intended for pickup at least fifteen feet from solid waste roll carts(s) or container(s).
 - 9. No person shall place any hazardous waste as defined by or pursuant to ORS Chapter 466 out for collection by the franchisee or place it in any container supplied by the franchisee without prior written notification and acceptance by the franchisee and also upon compliance with any requirements of ORS Chapter 466 and any rules or regulations thereunder.
 - 10. A container for hazardous or other special wastes shall be appropriately labeled and placed in a location inaccessible to the public. If the container is reusable, it shall be suitable for cleaning and be cleaned.
 - 11. No person shall use any solid waste collection container of thirty-two (32) gallons or more in capacity unless it is supplied or approved by the franchisee, on the basis of safety, equipment compatibility, availability of equipment and the purposes of this chapter.
 - 12. Roll carts, containers and drop boxes supplied by the franchisee shall be cleaned by the customer, provided, however, that the franchisee shall be responsible for exterior painting and provide normal maintenance. The customer shall be liable for damage to roll carts, containers, and drop boxes beyond reasonable wear and tear.

- B. No stationary compactor or other container for commercial or industrial use shall exceed the safe loading design limit or operation of the collection vehicle provided by the franchisee. Upon request of a group of customers requiring special service, the city council may require the franchisee to provide for vehicles capable of handling specialized loads including, but not limited to, front loading collection trucks and drop-box trucks and systems.
- C. To prevent injuries to users and collectors, stationary compacting devices for handling solid wastes shall comply with applicable federal and state safety regulations.
- D. Any vehicle used by any person to transport wastes shall be so loaded and operated as to prevent the wastes from dripping, dropping, sifting, blowing, or otherwise escaping from the vehicle onto any public right-of-way or lands adjacent thereto.

(Ord. 89-899 § 14)

8.20.150 - Offensive waste prohibited.

No person shall have waste on his or her property that is offensive or hazardous to the health or safety of others or which creates offensive odors or a condition of unsightliness.

(Ord. 89-899 § 15)

8.20.160 - Unauthorized deposit prohibited.

No person shall, without prior authorization and compliance with requirements of this chapter, deposit waste on public property or the private property of another person. Streets and other public places are not authorized as places to deposit waste except where specific provisions for containers have been made.

(Ord. 89-899 § 16)

8.20.170 - Violation—Penalty.

Violation by any person of the provisions of this chapter shall be deemed to be a misdemeanor and shall be punishable upon conviction by a fine of not more than five hundred dollars (\$500.00).

(Ord. 89-899 § 18)

City Council Meeting Date: November 21, 2017

Agenda Item: Public Hearing

TO: Sherwood City Council

FROM: Scott Mckie, Building Official

Through: Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director and Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City

Manager

SUBJECT: Ordinance 2017-007, Amending the terms of the Sherwood Municipal Code

(SMC) Chapter 15.04 relating to the adoption of the Oregon Plumbing Specialty Code, Oregon Electrical Specialty Code and Oregon Residential Specialty Code, and repealing reference to the Oregon Solar Installation Specialty Code

(First Reading)

Issue:

Shall the City Council adopt the updated Oregon Residential Specialty Code, Oregon Plumbing Specialty Code, and Oregon Electrical Specialty Code and repeal the 2010 Oregon Solar Installation Specialty Code?

Background:

The State of Oregon has adopted updated versions of the Oregon Residential Specialty Code, Oregon Plumbing Specialty Code, and Oregon Electrical Specialty Code effective October 1, 2017. Adopting this ordinance will ensure that the City is complying with the state's mandate to enforce the most current adopted residential specialty code and will promote the peace, health safety and welfare of the citizens of Sherwood.

The proposed ordinance will also repeal the 2010 Oregon Solar Installation Specialty Code. Since being adopted in 2010, the State of Oregon has amended the State Building Code and the OSISC (Oregon Solar Installation Specialty Code) was integrated into the Oregon Structural Specialty Code, therefore eliminating the need for a separate specific Solar Installation code. The City of Sherwood, in keeping with the State Codes, is removing the Oregon Solar Specialty Code section 15.04.180 from the Sherwood Municipal Code (SMC).

Financial Impacts:

There are no financial impacts created by adoption of this ordinance.

Recommendation:

Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council hold the first public hearing to consider adoption of Ordinance 2017-007 amending the terms of the Sherwood Municipal Code (SMC) Chapter 15.04 relating to the adoption of the Oregon Plumbing Specialty Code, Oregon Electrical Specialty Code and Oregon Residential Specialty Code, and repealing reference to the Oregon Solar Installation Specialty Code. The second public hearing on this matter is scheduled for December 5, 2017.



ORDINANCE 2017-007

AMENDING THE TERMS OF THE SHERWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE (SMC) CHAPTER 15.04 RELATING TO THE ADOPTION OF THE OREGON PLUMBING SPECIALTY CODE, OREGON ELECTRICAL SPECIALTY CODE AND OREGON RESIDENTIAL SPECIALTY CODE, AND REPEALING REFERENCE TO THE OREGON SOLAR INSTALLATION SPECIALTY CODE

WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood has assumed the duties associated with administration and enforcement of a comprehensive municipal building inspection program consistent with the requirement imposed by the terms of ORS 455.148; and

WHEREAS, the State Building Code (as defined in ORS 455.010) is applicable and uniform throughout Oregon, and the City is required as part of its assumption of duties noted above, to adopt the specialty codes comprising the State Building Code as those codes are adopted for enforcement by the Building Codes Division of the Oregon Department of Consumer and Business Services; and

WHEREAS, the Oregon Building Codes Division has, via Administrative Rule, adopted new and/or amended codes and standards which are to be applied by the City as part of its duties noted above and said codes and standards are effective as of October 1, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to continue its enforcement and administration duties relative to the State Building Code and must therefore amend its Municipal Code to reflect the changes in building regulations.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Findings.

After full and due consideration of the information presented at the public hearings held on November 21, 2017 and December 5, 2017, the City Council finds that the text of Section 15.04.130, 15.04.140, 15.04.150 and 15.04.180 of the Sherwood Municipal Code should be amended as set forth in Exhibit 1.

Section 2. Approval

The proposed amendment to the Sherwood Municipal Code identified in Exhibit 1 is hereby **APPROVED**.

Section 3. Manager Authorized

The City Manager is hereby directed and authorized to adopt rules and to take such other actions as may be necessary to implement this Ordinance, including necessary updates to the Municipal Code.

<u>Section 4. Effective Date</u> This ordinance shall become effective the 30th day after its enactment by the City Council and approval by the Mayor.

Duly passed by the City Council this 5th day of December 2017.

	Lee Weislogel, May	or	
Attest:			
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder			
		<u>AYE</u>	<u>NAY</u>
	Weislogel Griffin		
	Young		
	Garland Kuiper		

Exhibit 1

Sherwood Municipal Code (SMC) Section 15.04.130 hereby amended to read as follows:

15.04.130 Plumbing Code.

The City of Sherwood shall use the Oregon Plumbing Specialty Code as adopted by OAR 918-750-0100 (2017) for administration, inspection and plan review.

SMC Section 15.04.140 is hereby amended to read as follows:

15.04.140 Electrical Code.

The City of Sherwood shall use the Oregon Electrical Specialty Code as adopted and described in OAR 918-305-0010 (2017).

SMC Section 15.04.150 is hereby amended to read as follows:

15.04.150 Oregon Residential Specialty Code.

The City of Sherwood shall use the Oregon Residential Specialty Code as adopted by OAR 918-480-0005 (2017) for administration, inspection and plan review.

SMC Section 15.04.180 is hereby repealed in its entirety.

Sherwood Field House Monthly Report October 17					
0-1-147	0 : 1 47		VTD		0.1.40
October-17	Oct-17		<u>YTD</u>		<u>Oct-16</u>
<u>Usage</u>		People		People	People
<u>oougo</u>	Count	Served*	Count	Served*	Served*
Leagues	3	266	6	1064	280
Rentals	65	975	204	2796	896
Other (Classes)					
[1] Day Use	7	33	13	64	68
Total Usage		1274		3924	1244
Income FY 17 18	Oct-17	YTD			
Rentals	\$4,120	\$13,157			
League fees (indoor)	\$5,670	\$16,733			
Card fees (indoor)	\$120	\$390			
Day Use	\$110	\$155			
Advertising					
Snacks	\$627	\$2,058			
Classes					
Total	\$10,647	\$32,493			
<u>Income FY 16 17</u>	Oct-16	<u>YTD</u>			
Rentals	\$4,345	\$11,740			
League fees (indoor)	\$5,163	\$15,812			
Card fees (indoor)	\$120	\$220			
Day Use	\$251	\$667			
Advertising					
Snacks	\$693	\$2,087			
Classes					
Total	\$10,572	\$30,526			

^{*}Estimated number of people served.



Field and Gyms

- Youth soccer played 143 recreational games during the month of October and played another 16 classic games at Snyder Park.
- Youth football played 16 games at the high school in October. In addition, they have four teams in the playoffs that are still practicing.
- Youth softball finished the fall ball season with 20 games at the high school.
- Youth baseball played 80 games at Hopkins, SMS and Snyder Park to finish out their fall ball season.
- Youth cheer is almost finished with their season but will be cheering during the youth football playoffs.
- Youth volleyball finished their season on October 25th. They will probably resume in the spring.
- GPSD rented eight hours at Snyder for some adult men's soccer games.
- North West women's soccer played two games at the high school during the month.
- Fall lacrosse is still practicing at the high school.
- Fall basketball teams have finished and they are gearing up for their season with tryouts and evaluations.

Field House

- The old score board is down and walls have been patched.
- Rentals have picked up as we head into the winter.
- Pre- school play is pretty slow; most likely due to the great weather in October.
- With the Field House starting to become busy, a couple of the on call people have started working.

Respectfully Submitted

Lance Gilgan

November 2, 2017